
AGENDA 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
April 14, 2020 

1:00pm 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes
- March 24, 2020

2. Council Meeting Minutes
- March 24, 2020

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3
4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4
5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Report
- Capital Budget Summary, dated April 9, 2020
- PW Call Log, dated April 8, 2020

2. Development and Community Services

a) AES Report for March 2020
- Report from Agricultural Fieldman for March 2020

b) MD Enhanced Police Officer Report
- Report from Constable Harvey, received April 6, 2020

3. Finance
a) 2020 Tax Rate Bylaw

- Report from Director of Finance, dated April 9, 2020
b) Changes to the 2020 Property Tax Penalties

- Report from Director of Finance, dated April 9, 2020
c) Changes to the  2020 Utility Penalties

- Report from Director of Finance, dated April 9, 2020

4. Municipal

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report
- Report from CAO, dated April 9, 2020

AdminExecAsst
Highlight

AdminExecAsst
Highlight



 
H. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. For Action 

a) Request for a Council Resolution Supporting an Interagency Preplan Exercise at 
Castle Resort 

b) Request for Partnership with Shootin the Breeze  
 

2. For Information   
Recommendation to Council, dated April 9, 2020 

a) Local and Regional Emergency Resources  
b) Changes to Landfill Operations During COVID-19  
c) ICF Letter from Town to Municipal Affairs  
d) Community Foundation: Announcing a shift in our granting programs 
e) AltaLink’s Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Area Transmission Development 
f) Thank you to Council during COVID-19 from STARS 
g) Artist Project Update 
h) Food Bank Situational Update 

 
I. CLOSED MEETING SESSION 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Changes to Scheduled Events  

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 



Council Committee Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 
March 24, 2020 

MINUTES 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
Tuesday, March 24, 2020 10:00 am 

Present: Reeve Brian Hammond (via conference call), Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors 
Quentin Stevick, Bev Everts, and Terry Yagos. 

Staff: CAO Troy MacCulloch (via conference call), Director of Development and Community 
Services Roland Milligan, Director of Operations Aaron Benson, Director of Finance 
Meghan Dobie, and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire called the meeting to order, the time being 10:12 am. 

1. Approval of Agenda

Councillor Quentin Stevick

Moved that the agenda for March 24, 2020 be amended:
• Removing Corporate Policy C-CO-004 Donations – FOIP Section 23
• Removing Corporate Policy C-FIN-529 Fees and Charges – FOIP Section 23
• Removing Corporate Policy C-PW-009 Dust Control – FOIP Section 23

And that the agenda be approved as amended. 

Carried 
2. Closed Session:

Councillor Bev Everts

Moved that Council move into closed session to discuss the following, the time being
10:15 am:

a. Brett Wuth, Director of Emergency Management, Presenting to Council –
FOIP Section 24

b. 2020 Tax Recommendations – FOIP Section 23
c. ICF Municipal District of the Crowsnest Pass – FOIP Section 21
d. ICF Town of Pincher Creek – FOIP Section 21

Carried 
Councillor Quentin Stevick 

Moved that Council open the Committee Meeting to the public, the time being 11:53 am. 

Carried 

C1



Council Committee Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 
March 24, 2020 

3. Adjornment

Councillor Terry Yagos

Moved that the Committee Meeting adjourn, the time being 11:54 pm.

Carried 



MINUTES  9264 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
MARCH 24, 2020 

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, 
March 24, 2020, at 1:00 pm, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal District Administration Building, 
Pincher Creek, Alberta. 

PRESENT Reeve Brian Hammond (via conference call), Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors 
Quentin Stevick, Bev Everts, and Terry Yagos 

STAFF CAO Troy MacCulloch (via conference call), Director of Development and Community 
Services Roland Milligan, Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, Director of Operations Aaron 
Benson and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire called the meeting to order, the time being 1:00 pm. 

a) ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Brian Hammond    20/113

Moved that the Council Agenda for March 24, 2020 be amended to include:

Da) Update on Letter to MP Barlow re: DFO 
G4b) COVID-19 Update 
Id) 2020 Budget 
Ie) Recreation Agreement with Town of Pincher Creek 
If) ICF with Town of Pincher Creek 
Ig) ICF with Municipality of the Crowsnest Pass 
Ja) MD Office Closure/MD Playground Closures 
Jb) REMO Updates 

And that the agenda be approved as amended. 

Carried 

B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES

1. Council Committee Meeting

Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/114

Moved that the Minutes for Council Committee Meeting on March 10, 2020 be approved as
presented.

Carried 

2. Council Meeting Minutes

Councillor Bev Everts    20/115

Moved that the Minutes for the Council Meeting on March 10, 2020 be amended to include:
• Removal of the words “Training” on page 9261
• Removal of extra “Moved that” from resolution 20/110
• Replace word “funded” with “purchased” in resolution 20/110

And that the minutes be approved as amended. 

Carried 

C2



9265 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
March 24, 2020 
 
D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

 
Letter to Department of Fisheries and Oceans 
 
The letter was not sent as MP Barlow contacted the MD to state that the Department of Fisheries 
and Oceans was prepared to sign off on our project at Cabin Creek. 
 

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 

 
1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1 

a) Cardston County Bylaw Public Hearing 
2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 

a) Pincher Creek Foundation 
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3 

a) ORRSC 
b) FCSS Funding for Social Services  

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4 
a) PCCELC 
b) Conference Calls re Provincial Response to COVID-19 

5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos    20/116 
 
Moved to accept the Committee Reports and information. 
 

Carried 
 

Eric Blanchard attended the meeting at this time to discuss the Public Works Call Log, and left the 
meeting at 1:53 pm. 

 
G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS  

 
1. Operations  

 
a) Operations Report  

 
Councillor Brian Hammond  20/117 

 
Moved that Council receive for information the following Operations 
documents. 
 

• Capital Budget Summary, dated March 15, 2020 
• Public Works Call Log, dated March 15, 2020  

 
Carried 

 
2. Development and Community Services 

 
a) AES Report for March 2020  

 
Councillor Terry Yagos   20/118 
 
Moved that Council accept the AES Report for March 2020 as information. 
 

Carried 
 

  



9266 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
March 24, 2020 
 

b) Request for Development of Road Allowance ESE 26-03-30 W4M 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos   20/119 
 
Moved that Council receive the report on Request for Development of Road Allowance 
ESE 26-03-30 W4M as information, and further; 
 
That Council direct administration to review the feasibility of the request and return a 
report to Council for consideration. 
 

Carried 
 
c) Nature Conservancy of Canada and Waterton Springs Campground  

 
Councillor Brian Hammond    20/120 
 
Moved that the report on the Nature Conservancy of Canada and Waterton Springs 
Campground be referred to administration for further information. 
 

Carried 
 

3. Finance 
 

4. Municipal  
 

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report  
 

Councillor Terry Yagos  20/121 
 
Moved that Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer’s 
report dated March 19, 2020. 
 

Carried 
 

b) COVID-19 Update to Council 
 

Council was updated on the current COVID-19 situation. The MD has taken specific 
actions to reduce risk to citizens and staff.  The Public Works Office was closed to the 
visitors last week, and as of today, the Administration Office will close as well.  

  
H. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. For Action 

 
a) Canada Day Fireworks Celebration  
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/122 
 
Moved that Canada Day Fireworks Celebration letter be received as information. 
 
      Carried  

2. For Information 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos   20/123 
 

Moved to receive the following as information: 
 

- Crowsnest Pincher Creek Landfill AGM *Council was advised that the Crowsnest 
Pincher Creek Landfill AGM has been postponed.  

Carried 



9267 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
March 24, 2020 
 
I. CLOSED SESSION 
 

Councillor Brian Hammond    20/124 
 
Moved that Council move into closed session, the time being 2:52 pm, for the purpose of 
discussing: 
 

a) Crushing at Bruder Pit – FOIP Section 23 
b) Beaver Mines Water & Wastewater Budget Update – FOIP Section 16 
c) Compressed Work Week – FOIP Section 23 
d) Budget 2020 – FOIP Section 16 
e) Recreation Agreement with Town of Pincher Creek – FOIP Section 21 
f) ICF Town of Pincher Creek – FOIP Section 21  
g) ICF Municipal District of the Crowsnest Pass – FOIP Section 21 

 
 

Carried  
 

 Councillor Bev Everts     20/125 
 
 Moved that Council move out of closed session, the time being 5:21 pm. 
 
        Carried 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Crushing at Bruder Pit 

 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    20/126 
 
Moved that Council approve the agreement for the purchase of gravel at the Bruder pit. 
 

Carried 
 

b) Compressed Work Week  
 
Councillor Bev Everts     20/127 
 
Moved that the compressed work week for the Public Works Department would begin on May 4, 
2020 and end on October 1, 2020. 
 

Carried 
 

c) ICF Recreation Agreement with Town of Pincher Creek 
 

Councillor Bev Everts     20/128 
 
Moved that the MD of Pincher Creek approve the recreation agreement with the Town of Pincher Creek 
as presented: 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor:   Opposed: 
Councillor Bev Everts  Councillor Terry Yagos 
Councillor Rick Lemire Councillor Quentin Stevick 
Councillor Brian Hammond 
 
       Motion Carried 

  



9268 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
March 24, 2020 
 

d) ICF Town of Pincher Creek  
 

Councillor Bev Everts     20/129 
 
Moved that ICF with the Town of Pincher Creek be approved as presented. 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick requested a recorded vote. 
 
In Favor:   Opposed: 
Councillor Bev Everts  Councillor Terry Yagos 
Councillor Rick Lemire Councillor Quentin Stevick 
Councillor Brian Hammond 
 
       Motion Carried 
 
e) ICF Municipal District of the Crowsnest Pass  

 
Councillor Terry Yagos    20/130 
 
Moved that Council direct Administration to pursue a one year extension with the Government of 
Alberta, to finalize the ICF with the Municipality of Crowsnest Pass. 
 

Carried 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Councillor Brian Hammond    20/131 

 
Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 5:26 pm. 
 
       Carried 
 
 

 
 

              
     REEVE 

 
 

       
      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

1.0 Operations Activity Includes: 

1.1 Beaver Mines and Capital Projects. 
1.2 Summer Gravel Program. 
1.3 Review the policy of C-PW-009 Dust Control. 

2.0 Upcoming: 

2.1 Beaver Mines and Capital Projects. 

3.0 Public Works Activity Includes: 

3.1 Bridge Maintenance, Inspections and Texas Gates 

3.1.1 The bridge assessment on major, standard and culvert bridges was completed (see 
Figures 1 to 5). Public Works will use this information in the Road Master Plan to 
allow better planning on minor and major repairs or complete replacement of the 
MD's bridge assets. The average life expectancy in WSP Engineering 5 year 
Infrastructure Master Plan of new structures was: 
(a) Bridge Culverts 45 years 
(b) Standard Bridges 60 years 
(c) Major Bridges 75 years 

3.2 Cold Mix Asphalt and chip seal 

3 .2.1 Public Works is in the Progress of reviewing all of the damaged locations where the 
cold mix is applied, and these roads include Christie Mines, Gladstone, Willow 
Valley and Maycroft surface roads. The proposed work will be to have a contractor 
remove small sections of damaged cold mix and replace it with only gravel in 
required locations. The total cost since 2015 associated with the application of the 
cold mix is $792,057. 

3.3 Permanent & Temporary Snow Fence Repairs 

3.3.1 Public Works will start in the middle of April 2020 to remove temporary snow fence 
in all Divisions. 

3.3.2 Permanent snow fencing assessments total length were recorded at 20,448 meters 
(See Figures 6 to 15). The following information is a break down of permanent snow 
fence in all Divisions: 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 1 of 14 

G1a



Division No. 1 
(a) Forty-Six (46) fences are standing with total length is 4,432 meters 
(b) Three (3) fences or 7 percent will need to be rebuilt 
(c) Twenty-Five (25) fences or 54 percent will need to have major repairs 
( d) Six ( 6) fences or 13 percent will need to have minor repairs 
(e) Two (2) fences or 4 percent is in good condition 
(f) Ten (10) fences or 22 percent is in excellent condition 

Division No. 2 

(a) Twenty-Five (25) fences are standing with total length is 2,704 meters 
(b) Four ( 4) fences or 16 percent will need to be rebuilt 
(c) Fourteen (14) fences or 56 percent will need to have major repairs 
( d) Three (3) fences or 12 percent will need to have minor repairs 
( e) There is nothing to report for good Condition 
( f) Four ( 4) fences or 16 percent is in excellent condition 

Division No. 3 

(a) Forty ( 40) fences are standing with total length is 4,382 meters 
(b) One (1) fence or 2 percent will need to be rebuilt 
(c) Six (6) fences or 15 percent will need major repairs 
( d) Nine (9) fences or 22 percent will need minor repairs 
( e) Fifteen (15) fences or 3 8 percent is in excellent condition 

Division No. 4 

(a) Forty-One (41) fences are standing with total length is 5,992 meters 
(b) Two (2) fences or 5 percent will need to be rebuilt 
(c) Twelve (12) fences or 29 percent will require major repairs 
(d) Fourteen (14) fences or 34 percent will require minor repairs 
(e) Four (4) fences or 10 percent is in excellent condition 

Division No. 5 

(a) Twenty-Three (23) fences are standing with total length is 2,938 meters 
(b) There is nothing to be rebuilt at this time 
( c) There is nothing to report on major repairs 
(d) Eight (8) fences or 35 percent will require minor repairs 
( e) Seven (7) fences or 30 percent is in good condition 
(f) Eight (8) fences or 35 percent is in excellent condition 

3.4 Continuous Dust Suppression Program 

3.4.1 Public Works has ordered only Lignosulfonate product this year for dust control. 
There will be no contracting out dust control this year as the MD will be doing this 
service - following the approved schedule A for dust control. 

3.4.2 The 2020 Dust Control Agreement and Dust Control Policy are on the MD website. 
Due to the offices being closed to the public, applications for Dust Control can be 
made by emailing the fonn to info@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca, fax to 403 627 5070 and 
drop box at the administration office. The application deadline will be May 1, 2020. 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 2 of 14 



3.5 Signage Repairs 

3.5.1 There is nothing to report. 

3.6 Road Works, & Miscellaneous 

3.6.1 Public Works will receive compensation by Canfor Canadian Forest Products from 

damages caused on Gladstone Road. 

3.6.2 Logging on Gladstone by Canfor was completed on March 2, 2020, with remaining 

logs hauled after on the Shell Road. 

3.6.3 Gravel haul Tender is on the MD website and with a closing date of April 16, 2020. 

3.6.4 An aggregate plan for roads (See Figure 16) will be used to record, and measure the 

number of kilometres, and tonnes of gravel to identify costs for this year; 

(a) The total length of roads to be gravelled is 348.91 km 

(b) Arterial roads are 182.21 km 

(c) Collector roads are 107.83 km 

Local roads are 58.87 km (d) 

(e) 

(f) 

Total estimated volume at 100 m3/km = 34,891 m3 

Total estimated volume at 150 m3/km = 52,336 m3 

4.0 Capital Projects Update: 

4.1.1 Bridges & Miscellaneous 

4.1.2 Bridge File 6613 Status: WSP Engineering has received the DFO clearance on April 
2, 2020, for the BF 6613 Cabin Creek. Notification to the contractor has been given 
by WSP Engineering with the construction to take place on August 15, 2020, to 
September 1, 2020. 

• Bridge File: 6613 (SW 3-9-1-W5) 
• Location: Cabin Creek 
• Scope of Work: Replacement of bridge sized culvert 
• Consultant: WSP Engineering 
• Contractor: Ossa Terra Ltd . 
• Funding: Local Roads and Bridges (STIP) or MSI 

4.1.3 Bridge File 7235 Status: WSP Engineering has started on the tender package with 
the proposed construction is to take place from August 15 through September 1, 
2020. 

• Bridge File: 7235 
• Location: Scottons (NW 5 - 9-1-W5M) 
• Scope of Work: Replacement of bridge sized culvert 
• Consultant: WSP Engineering 
• Contractor: TBD 
• Funding: Local Roads and Bridges (STIP) or MSI 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 3 of 14 



4.1.4 Bridge File 76293 Status: WSP Engineering has started on the tender package 
where the proposed construction completion is in September 2020. 

• Bridge File: 76293 (NE 3-6-2-W5M) 
• Location: Grumpy Road NE 3 -6 -W5M 
• Scope of Work: Replacement of bridge sized culvert 
• Consultant: WSP Engineering 
• Contractor: NIA 
• Funding: Provincial Gas Tax 

4.1.5 Bridge File 8860 Status: We are waiting for DFO approval as we need the 
authorization to proceed as one (1) pier is in the water. The proposed construction of 
this project will be from August 15 through September 1, 2020. - In Progress 

• Bridge File: 
• Location: 
• Scope of Work: 
• Consultant: 
• Contractor: 
• Funding: 

8860 (NW 11-6-2-W5) 
Beaver Mines Creek 
Repair selected piles and replace all caps 
Roseske Engineering 
TBD 
Reserve under the bridge repair, replacement 

4.1.6 Bridge File 13957 Status: The proposed construction completion of this project will 
be in September 2020. - in Progress 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Bridge File: 
Location: 
Scope of Work: 
Consultant: 
Contractor: 
Funding: 

13957 (NE 5-8-2-W5) 
Connelly Creek 
Replacement of abutement caps 
Roseke Engineering 
TBD 
Reserve under the bridge repair, replacement 

4.1. 7 Bridge File 75009 Status: The project has completed the bridge culvert design. The 
recommendations are to do an open cut method by supply and install a 2000mm 
diameter bridge culvert due to the size of the existing culvert. 

• Bridge File: 75009 (NE 9-9-2-W5) 
• Location: Wild Cat Ranch 
• Scope of Work: Replacement of bridge sized culvert 
• Consultant: Roseke Engineering 
• Contractor: NIA 
• Funding: Reserve under the bridge repair, replacement 

4.1 .8 Bridge File 75377 Status: The project is only to do the bridge design with the 
Engineering Company with completion by August 2020. 

• Bridge File: 
• Location: 
• Scope of Work: 
• Consultant: 
• Contractor: 
• Funding: 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

75377 (NW 8-6-2-W5) 
Local Road over Screwdriver Creek 
Replacement of bridge sized culvert 
Roseke Engineering 

IA 
Reserve under the bridge repair, replacement 

Page 4 of 14 



4.2 Road & Miscellaneous 

4.2.l Lundbreck Road Status: The tender package will be sent out on April 9, 2020, and 
with a tender closing date of April 23, 2020. Tenders openings will be closed to the 
public due to the COVID-19 pandemic; unofficial results shall be distributed by 
email or fax to bidders. 

• Roads: 3rd Street 
• Location: Lundbreck 
• Scope of Work: New asphalt & drainage improvements 
• Consultant: WSP Engineering 
• Contractor: TBD 
• Funding: MSI funding 

4.2.2 RR29-3 Road Status: The Public Works has received the soil stabilizer product by 
the supplier. The proposed work is in June 2020. 

• Roads: orth of 507 East, to Tower Road 
• Location: RR29-3 
• Scope of Work: Add new soil stabilizer in gravel road 
• Consultant: NIA 
• Contractor: Public Works 
• Funding: MSI funding 

4.2.3 Range Road 1-0 Road Status: The Consultant will do geotechnical work to indicate 
no issues are below the asphalt pavement of Southfork Road from Range Road 1-0 to 
the Castle Valley Campground. The proposed work is in the spring of this year. 

• Roads: Range Road 1-0 to Campground 
• Location: Southfork Hill 
• Scope of Work: Geotechnical work 
• Consultant: ISL Engineering 
• Contractor: NIA 
• Funding: MSI funding 

4 .3 Facilities 

4.3.1 Camera Security Status: The Consultant has almost completed the design of the 
project. The proposed completion of the design and tender package is expected by 
the end of May 2020 with a construction completion date of September 2020. 

• Location: 
• Scope of Work: 
• Consultant: 
• Contractor: 
• Funding: 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

Administration and Public Works Buildings 
Camera security system 
SMP Engineering 
NIA 
MSI 

Page 5 of 14 



5.0 Beaver Mines Water Servicing & Waste Water Collection 

5 .1.1 There is nothing to report at this time. 

6.0 Beaver Mines Lift Station and ForceMain 

6.1.1 There is nothing to report at this time. 

7.0 Beaver Mines Waste Water Treatment System 

7.1.1 A project update was sent to the Beaver Mines Community on March 27, 2020; 
7 .1.2 The landowner signed the review of the detailed design package of the Beaver 

Mines Wastewater Treatment System; 
7.1.3 The MD received confirmation on why the Investing in Canada Infrastructure 

Program (ICIP) was not successful for the Beaver Mines Wastewater Treatment 
project. The situation was the number of applicants applied, the type of project, and 
the secure funding source on the available funds . There is no available Investing in 
Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) grant at this time. 

7 .1.4 The proposed application submission for Environmental Approval with the 
Province is still scheduled for April 15, 2020. 

8.0 Castle Area Regional Water Supply Contracts 1: 

8.1.1 Parks will allow LW Dennis to continue construction. Highway 774 is not closed, 
just park facilities and areas area. 

8.1.2 LW Dennis is prepared to begin work around May 1, 2020. 

9.0 Castle Area Regional Water Supply Contracts 2: 

9 .1.1 Booster Station at Castle Park and Beaver Mines: 
(a) There is nothing to report at this time. 

Attachments 
Program Capital Projects Status 
Call Logs 

Recommendation: 

That the Operations report for April 9, 2020, will include the Program Capital Projects Status 
update, and the call log is received as information. 

Prepared by: Aaron Benson 

Reviewed by: Troy Macculloch 

Submitted to: Council 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

Date: April 9, 2020 

Date: April 9, 2020 

Date: April 9, 2020 

Page 6 of 14 



FIGURES 

1. Bridge Inventory Summary 

2. Number of Bridge Structures 

3. Age of Existing Structures 

4. Bridge Structural Condition Rating 

5. Bridge Sufficiency Rating 

6. Percentage of Fence in Division No. 1 

7. Condition of Fence in Division No. 1 

8. Percentage of Fence in Division No. 2 

9. Condition of Fence in Division No. 2 

10. Percentage of Fence in Division No. 3 

11. Condition of Fence in Division No. 3 

12. Percentage of Fence in Division No. 4 

13. Condition of Fence in Division No. 4 

14. Percentage of Fence in Division No. 5 

15. Condition of Fence in Division No. 5 

16. Gravel Program Map 

17. Capital Budget Summary 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 7 of 14 



Figure 2: Represents Number of Existing Bridge Structures by Type 

NUMBER OF EXISTING BRIDGE STRUCTURES BY TYPE 

138 Standard l 
Bridges 

L 24% 

16 Major Bridge~ 
10% 

L -

105 Bridge 

1 
Culverts 

66% 
1 

Figure 3: Represents Age of Existing Structures 

AGE OF EXISTING STRUCTURES 

• Bridge Culverts 

• Major Bridges 

• Standard Bridges 

• Bridge Culverts • Major Bridges • Standard Bridges 

40 

Ill 35 
34 

a, ... 
:::, 30 28 -u 
2 25 -~ 20 
0 ... 15 a, 
.c 11 11 10 

13 

E 10 6 :::J 5 5 z 5 I • 1 • 0 - I 3 ~ I 4 

• • 
Oto 10 11 to 20 21 to 30 31 t o 40 41 t o 50 51 t o 60 Over60 

Age of Infrastructure 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 8 of 14 



Figure 4: Represents Bridge Structural Condition Rating 

BRIDGE CONDITION RATING 

30 • Bridge Culverts • Standard Bridges • Major Bridges 

25 24 
VI 
Cl) ... 21 
::I 19 ... 20 u 
::I 16 ... ... 
Vl 15 14 -0 ... 

10 Cl) 
..0 10 

L 
E 
::I 
z 

5 
1 

0 -21 to 30 31 to 40 41 to 50 51 to 60 61 to 70 71 to 80 Over 80 
Structural Condition Rating(%) - Bridges 

Figure 5: Represents Bridge Sufficiency Rating 

BRIDGE CONDITION RATING ii ~ . ·--~ 
• Bridge Culverts • Standard Bridges • Major Bridges 

' I t 

35 32 

~ 30 
26 ... 

_a 25 u 
::I 19 ~ 20 18 
Vl -0 ... 15 
Cl) 

..0 10 E 7 
::I 5 il z 5 

I 
3 

0 • 
21 to 30 31 to 40 41 to 50 51 to 60 61 to 70 71 to 80 Over80 

Sufficiency Rating (%} - Bridges 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 9 of 14 



Figure 6: Represents Percentage of Fence in Division No. 1 

PERCENTAGE OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 1 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Figure 7: Represents Condition of Fence in Division No. 1 

30 

Ill 25 
Qj 
u 
C 20 Qj 

LL. .... 
0 15 ... 
Qj 

..c 10 E 
::I 
z 5 3 

0 

Rebuild 

Oto 1 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

CONDITION OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 1 

25 

Major 

Repairs 

2 to 3 

6 

Minor Good 

Repairs Condition 

4to 5 

Rating of Fence 

6 to 7 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 
10 • 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

Excellent • Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Condition 

Over 8 

Page 10 of 14 



Figure 8: Represents Percentage of Fence in Division No. 2 

PERCENTAGE OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 2 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Figure 9: Represents Condition of Fence in Division No. 2 

16 

14 
II) 

12 QI 
u 
C 
QI 10 LI. -0 8 ... 
QI 

..c 6 
E 4 
::::J 4 z 

2 

0 

Rebuild 

Oto 1 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

CONDITION OF FENCE IN DIVISION NO. 2 

14 

Major 
Repairs 

2 to 3 

4 
3 

Minor Good Excellent 
Repairs Condition Condition 

4to5 6to7 Over8 

Rating of Fence 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Page 11 of 14 



Figure 10: Represents Percentage of Fence in Division No. 3 

PERCENTAGE OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 3 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Figure 11: Represents Condition of Fence in Division No. 3 

CONDITION OF FENCE IN DIVISION NO. 3 

16 15 

14 

Ill 12 ~ 
I.I 
C: 
~ 10 u. 9 -0 8 • 0 to 1 Rebuild ... 
~ 6 
.c 6 
E 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 
::::, 

4 z • 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

2 • 6 to 7 Good Condition 

0 • Over 8 Excellent Condition 
Rebuild M ajor M inor Good Excellent 

Re pairs Repairs Condition Condition 

Oto 1 2 to 3 4to 5 6 t o 7 Over8 

Rating of Fence 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 12 of 14 



Figure 12: Represents Percentage of Fence in Division No. 4 

PERCENTAGE OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 4 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Figure 13: Represents Condition of Fence in Division No. 4 

CONDITION OF FENCE IN DIVISION NO. 4 

16 
14 

14 
12 

Ill 12 Qj 
I.I 
C: 

9 Qj 10 
LL. .._ 
0 8 • 0 to 1 Rebuild ... 
Qj 
.c 6 • 2 to 3 Major Repairs 
E 
::I 

4 • 4 to 5 Minor Repairs z 
2 

2 • 6 to 7 Good Condition 

0 • Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Rebuild Major Minor Good Excellent 

Repairs Repairs Condition Condition 

0 to 1 2 to 3 4to 5 6 to 7 Over8 

Rating of Fence 

DATE: April 9, 2020 Page 13 of 14 



Figure 14: Represents Percentage of Fence in Division No. 5 

PERCENTAGE OF FENCE IN DIVISION No. 5 

• 0 to 1 Rebuild 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Condition 

• Over 8 Exce llent Condition 

Figure 15: Represents Cond ition of Fence in Division No. 5 

Ill 
Cl) 
u 
C: 
Cl) 

I.I. -0 ... 
Cl) 

.c 
E 
::l 
z 

8.2 

8 

7.8 

7.6 

7.4 

7.2 

7 

6.8 

6.6 

6.4 

Rebuild 

Oto 1 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

CONDITION OF FENCE IN DIVISION NO. 5 

Major 
Repairs 

2 to 3 

8 8 

Minor Good Excellent 
Repairs Cond ition Cond ition 

4 to 5 

Rating of Fence 

6 to 7 Over8 

• 0 to 1 Rebui ld 

• 2 to 3 Major Repairs 

• 4 to 5 Minor Repairs 

• 6 to 7 Good Co ndition 

• Over 8 Excellent Condition 

Page 14 of 14 







2020-04-08

40 NAME PHONE NUMBER DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH 
NUMBER 

CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UP
DATE

COMPLETION DATE

1558 Division 1 SW36 T4 R30 W4 - Re getting an approach built Developer waiting on agreement with 
Development Officer

18-Apr-18

1617 Division 1 West Kerr - Trees on the west side of Kerr road need cut back
signs/culverts MD's most dangerous area 

Erik/Aaron/Roland To meet w/Russell 30-May-18 Met Nov 7 Defered to Spring 2020

1643 Division 4 SW22 T7 R1 W5 - Would like a culvert put in to solve water problem Eric/Bob M To be scheduled 26-Jun-18  inspected site Dec.10 Defered to Spring 2020

1982 Division 2 - - The old Reed Pit needs to be reclaimed Aaron/WSP On the list 27-Jun-19 Talked w/colony Jan 08 2020

1995 Division 2 NW23 T5 R29 W4 #5313 Wetland/shoulder of road & drainage problem Eric Blanchard Engineer to look at
2020 Project 

16-Jul-19 November 1, 2019 Defered to Spring 2020

2014 Division 3 NW3 T6 R2 W5 - Culvert  smashed Bob Millar  On list to do  29-Jul-19 October 2019 Defered to Spring 2020

2058 Division 1 NE3 T5 R29 W4 - Needs existing approach widened for Super B's Eric Blanchard To be done 9-Sep-19 October 16
followup 

Defered to Spring 2020

2074 Division 4 A/P road n.of Cowley - complaining of big rocks on road needs proper 
gravel pounded down 

Eric/Brian On to do list 23-Sep-19 October 2019 Defered to Spring 2020

2134 Division 5 SE16 T8 R2 W5 - RQ to have a cattle guard removed from MD Road 
memo from Head Office July 3 /PW just heard now 

Eric Blanchard Been in contact 12-Nov-19 Met w/Roger Pizony 
in December

Defered to Spring 2020

2182 Division 3 SE18 T6 R1 W5 - An E-mail  from Brian Hammond re culvert issues Eric Blanchard Will contact for 
detailed info

12-Jan-20 Met 0n Feb 27th Will Reassess in spring 

2206 Division 3 SW15 T6 R2 W5 - Grader operator knocked down post or part of his 
fence & would like it repaired as needs to use field

Tony Tuckwood Completion at a later
date

14-Feb-20 Feb 20 temporarily fixed 

2208 Division 1 SW14 T4 R29 W4 - Bent sign by Tony Bruder Bridge Bob Millar  Completed 18-Feb-20 Parts arrived 30-Mar-20

2213 Division 5 SW35 T8 R3 W5 #3106 TWP8-5A Still has not received their blue sign/ordered last 
spring 

Joyce/Roland Signs to be put in 25-Feb-20 signs are in 

2216 Division 1 NW2 T5 R30 W4 - Looking to  building a new approach/putting a new 
building on property 

Eric Blanchard Completed 09-Mar-20 Met March 18th 12-Mar-20

2229 Division 3 NE30 T5 R2 W5 #5418 RR2-5 RQ Driveway  for tomorrow if possible Tony Tuckwood Completed 19-Mar-20 20-Mar-20

2230 Division 1 SW21 T4 R29 W4 #4315 RR29-4 Damaged culver (grader oops) to be repaired To Do List Culvert repair 20-Mar-20 For Spring Defered to Spring 2020

2231 Division 4 NE29 T8 R1 W5 - Blocked Culvert Brian Layton completed 24-Mar-20 NA/ Sinnott 25-Mar-20

2232 Pincher Stn - - Blocked Culvert - Completed 23-Mar-20 NA  / Sinnott 25-Mar-20

2233 Division 3 NW15 T5 R5 W5 - Blocked Culvert Tony Tuckwood Completed 25-Mar-20 NA 26-Mar-20

2234 Division 4 8418 TWP8-4 - Blocked Culvert Brian Layton Completed 25-Mar-20 NA 26-Mar-20

2235 Division 4 RR1-3A TWP9-6 - Skyline/Heath Creek / Blocked Culvert Brian Layton Completed 25-Mar-20 NA  / Sinnott 26-Mar-20

2236 Division 4 RR1-5 - Zellers/Morgan Loop Blocked Culvert Brian Layton Completed 25Mar202 NA/ Sinnott 26-Mar-20

2237 Division 3 Range Road 20 - Road Washing out Tony Tuckwood Completed 29-Mar-20 Sunday Call out 30-Mar-20

2238 Division 3 SW14 T5 R1 W5 #5203 RR1-0A Would like some expert advice on repairing 
and maintaining his road

John Completed 30-Mar-20 N/A 31-Mar-20

2239 Division 5 SE29 T9 R2  W5 #9415 RR2-4A Blocked Culvert Dave Sekella Completed 30-Mar-20 NA / Sinnott 31-Mar-20

2240 Lundbreck - - Water Flowing past trailor park Randy McLeod Completed 28-Mar-20 Sat, call out 28-Mar-20

2241 Division 3 - - Water gushing south of Hagglunds house Tony Tuckwood Completed 30-Mar-20 NA 30-Mar-20

2242 Division 3 - - Hill washing out Tony Tuckwood Completed 30-Mar-20 NA 31-Mar-20

2243 Division 5 SW36 T9 R3 W5 - Culvert flowing over Dave Sekella Completed 30-Mar-20 NA 31-Mar-20

2244 Division 5 NE2 T8 R3 W5 #8026 RR3-1 North Burmis road after paved section 
needs plowing 

Dave Sekella Completed 31-Mar-20 A Big Thank You 01-Apr-20

2245 Division 2 NW32 T5 R29 W4 #29417 TWP6-0 RR29-5 very buddy and difficult to drive on Kent Zielke checking what can be
done 

06-Apr-20 07-Apr-20 07-Apr-20

2246 Lundbreck 15 Patton Place Street is very icy & walkers are falling Melting should help 07-Apr-20 NA 08-Apr-20

2247 Division 4 Culvert Problem Bob Salmon On culvert list 07-Apr-20 08-Apr-20 Defered to Spring 2020

2248 Division 1 SE26 T4 R30 W5 #4408 RR30-3 By Halton Dam water flowing over road Rod Nelson On going problem 08-Apr-20 Did what was 
possible

08-Apr-20



2020-04-08

40 NAME PHONE NUMBER DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH 
NUMBER 

CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UP
DATE

COMPLETION DATE

2249 Lundbreck 452 Patton Ave has water on his lawn RQ if we could plow 
alley to help 

BobS/Eric Checking it out 08-Apr-20

Indicates  Defered 

indicates  On the To Do List  

Indicates Completed 



AES, March, 2020 

• March 2, visit dams, safety
• March 3, budget, Strychnine conference call
• March 4, PW Safety meeting, ASB Meeting
• March 5, rental equipment, reporting
• March 6, hiring & job descriptions
• March 9, deadstock bin inspections, repairs & cleaning
• March 10 – 13, Strategic Plan & provincial funding
• March 10, AWRAC (Alberta Weed Regulatory Advisory Committee) meeting (conference call)
• March 11, met with Marilyn Neville about July 22, 23, GRF (Grasslands Restoration Forum)

Workshop
• March 11, 12, SRD information package (mapping & records)
• March 12, 13, updating files (server & paper)
• March 16, South Region AAAF Meeting (cancelled due to COVID-19)
• March 16, 17, updating and organizing AES files on servers/computers
• March 17, rental equipment, shop work
• March 18, reporting, rental equipment policy
• March 19, move rental equipment to PW
• March 19, 20, summer weed program planning
• March 20, ASB Grant Webinar
• March 23 – 31, Patton Park gophers (weather permitting)
• March 23 – 31, MRF software (training, installations, transferring mapping data, etc)
• March 23 – 31, shop and equipment prep
• March 23 – 31, resumes and interviews
• March 23, dams & deadstock bins
• March 24, review of purchasing for upcoming season
• March 25, ASB Agenda prep
• March 26, 27, Strategic Plan/Provincial Funding Application
• March 27, reschedule of exam for Landscape Certification (cancelled due to COVID)
• March 30, SWIM Meeting (conference call)
• March 31, Weed Species Review meeting (AWRAC – a committee of AAAF)(online due to COVID)

Sincerely, 

Shane Poulsen, 
Agricultural Fieldman 

G2a



MD OF PINCHER CREEK ENHANCED POLICING 
MONTHLY REPORT MARCH 2020 

Cst. Laurence Harvey 
RCMP Pincher Creek 

Shifts worked: 19 

Monthly Traffic Ticket Summary MD Hamlet Patrols 

Speeding 
Division 1 : 5 
Division 2 : 7 
Division 3 : 6 
Division 4 : 7 
Division 5 : 5 

Stop Sign Violations 2 

Administrative Violations 

Equipment Violations 

Other 

Warnings Given 5 

Total: 

Distance Driven:  2700 km 

Number of Violation Tickets Issued:  2 

Violation ticket location: 

Beaver Mines: 
Hwy 3/6/507:2 
Hwy 22: 

Public Meetings/Events/Training: 

Patrolled Provincial Parks, Old man Dam, Waterton Dam 
Patrolled the Shell road, Chapel Rocks road, Willow Creek road, and Snake trail road. 
Assisted general duty members with investigation  
Attended Citizen on Patrols AGM 
All community events and meetings cancelled due to COVID-19 Pandemic 

G2b



G3a























G3b











G3c





G4a



Pincher Creek Emergency Services 

P.O. Box 1086     
655 Charlotte Street 
Pincher Creek, Alberta T0K 1W0 
Ph. 403-627-5333     Fax 403-627-3502 

Pincher Creek Emergency Services 

MD of Pincher Creek 
Box 279 
Pincher Creek, Alberta 
T0K 1W0 

April 7, 2020 

Attention: MD Council 

SUBJECT:  Request for a Council Resolution Supporting an Interagency Preplan Exercise at Castle Resort 

FRIAA (the Forest Resource Improvement Association of Alberta) has funding several projects in the 
Pincher Creek MD starting with the Wildfire Mitigation Strategy and includes several education projects as well as 
a vegetation management project. 

Last year PCESC had applied for and received funds from FRIAA to develop a pre-incident plan for Castle Resort, 
the University of Lethbridge site, Camp Impessa, and Beaver Mines for provision of structure protection in the 
event of a wildfire. 

This plan has been done and I made a request for FRIAA to fund an exercise to test a portion of this plan utilizing 
PCESC and mutual aid partner resources in the amount of $36,000.00. This amount covers the costs of 
developing the exercise, overseeing the exercise, and compensating mutual aid partners plus incidental costs. 

We have been approved to submit a detailed plan for doing the “Castle Preplan Interagency Exercise”. 

The Exercise proposed will involve using resources from adjacent jurisdictions to set up structure protection 
according to the preplan and also exercise tactics to be used to support that protection.  

Part of the detailed submission is a requirement for a MD council resolution supporting this exercise. 

I am requesting that MD council approve a resolution supporting this project. 

David Cox 
Chief 
Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission 

H1a



From: Shannon Robison
To: Marie Everts; Jessica McClelland
Subject: Revised information
Date: April 2, 2020 2:53:01 PM
Attachments: COVID 19 12 Weeks.pdf

Hello ladies,

I've attached a document with concise details on the partnership I am hoping to secure with the MD of Pincher
Creek and with PCREMO.

When the idea was originally put out last week, it was presented as a sponsorship as a publisher in High Level had
shared what had happened in his community to support local businesses and to ensure the newspaper was able to
continue publishing in print during the pandemic. 

I was trying to come up with something similar for Pincher Creek and believe it may have come off the wrong way.
It should have been presented as a request for an advertising partnership with benefit for the community as a whole
and for the partners.

I firmly believe a print newspaper is essential at this time. Social media may be free, but it is cluttered and many of
our most vulnerable do not use the Internet.

Details are attached.

The deadline on the flat sheet is listed as tomorrow, but if you can let me know as soon as possible that will help
greatly if I need to look for alternate partners.

I appreciate your thoughtful consideration and am happy to answer any questions.

Thank you,
Shannon

-- 
Shannon Robison
Publisher/Owner of Shootin' the Breeze

403-904-2227 Office  |  403-627-8829 Cell
697A Main Street  |  Box 811, Pincher Creek, AB   T0K 1W0
shannon@shootinthebreeze.ca      www.shootinthebreeze.ca

Our business is to help you increase yours!
We are proud to be locally owned and locally staffed.

If you no longer wish to receive email correspondence from Shootin' the Breeze, please reply with "remove" in the subject line.

H1b

mailto:publisher@shootinthebreeze.ca
mailto:economic@pinchercreek.ca
mailto:Communications@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:shannon@shootinthebreeze.ca
http://www.shootinthebreeze.ca/



COVID-19 Community Partnership


Your commitment to 12 weeks of advertising makes a difference to your community!


Quarter Page = $235 x 12     Half Page = $420 x 12   (GST not included)


You can help us keep the community informed in this unprecedented time
Shootin’ the Breeze is committed to providing information to the community 


through both our print paper and online media as the COVID-19 pandemic progresses.


Social media is crowded and full of misinformation. It may be free, but it is cluttered 
and not reaching the most vulnerable — Pincher Creek’s demographic is not a young one.


Our goal is to put FREE print papers into the hands of as many people as possible for the next 12 weeks.


High-visibility advertsing
to 2,350 + during a time 


when businesses need to stay
connected to community


Partners will be acknowledged weekly:
   * In a banner ad underneath the  


page 1 masthead in print
   * In subscriber email notices with 


link to online paper
   * In weekly social media posts


   * In a banner ad below the masthead
at www.shootinthebreeze.ca


25% of your ad purchase
will be used to cover additional


printing and delivery costs 
to increase print circulation 


from 1,100 to 2,300


For the community ...


For the local economy ...


For your business ...
 2,000+ FREE COPIES of Shootin’ the Breeze will be distributed through Canada Post to all boxes in Pincher 
Creek, Twin Butte, Lundbreck and Cowley. Bulk deliveries will be dropped at seniors facilities, free copies will be 
available at regular vendors and the online version will also be free. Crowsnest Pass currently receives 350.
 This is a critical time for accurate information to reach as many people as possible and Shootin’ the Breeze has 
proven to be a trusted source for Pincher Creek and area. People also need a sense of normalcy and a means to 
stay connected to their community. It is not a time for this to be limited to subscribers or to those who can pay.


 Small businesses doing their best to operate under restrictions or from behind closed doors will benefit from 
the increased circulation and visibility during this challenging time. 


 • Solid advertising and partnership recognition benefits your business
 • Everyone in the immediate area has access to important information and stays connected
 • Small businessess have greater chance of surviving and thriving once we’re past this tumultuous time


Win-win situation — Wednesdays, April 8 to June 24


Deadline is Friday, April 3 at noon   Contact Shannon Robison, Publisher     403-904-2227     publisher@shootinthebreeze.ca


$1.25$1.25  GST Included


April 1, 2020Year 9, Issue 27


403-627-3290   403-627-4900  


1342 Veteran’s Street    Pincher Creek    


Dr. David Baker  •  Dr. Greg Steed 


Dr. Mark Leishman  •  Dr. Fraser Peterson


General Dentists


EMERGENCY TREATMENT ONLY AT THIS TIMEas per the Alberta Dental 
Association & College


Blackburn  
Blackburn  Jewellers


Jewellers    


We offer watch batteries, jewellery repair services 


and diamond ring cleaning and inspection


768 Main St.    403-627-3292    Pincher Creek


We are available 
for pickup or delivery!
To schedule an appointment, 


call 403-627-3292 
or text 403-480-4040


COVID-19INFORMATIONwww.alberta.ca/COVID19


The dawn of new life brings a joy unmatched, especially in times of crisis. Born March 11, tiny Raleigh Joy of Fernie, B.C., reminds us of what we are 


The dawn of new life brings a joy unmatched, especially in times of crisis. Born March 11, tiny Raleigh Joy of Fernie, B.C., reminds us of what we are 


fighting for as we choose to remain housebound during the COVID-19 pandemic. Please do your part, and be one who is actively participating in the 


fighting for as we choose to remain housebound during the COVID-19 pandemic. Please do your part, and be one who is actively participating in the 


physical/social distancing measures recommended by Alberta Health Services. Remember to be kind and wash your hands.


physical/social distancing measures recommended by Alberta Health Services. Remember to be kind and wash your hands.  


Photo by Brenda Shenton  
 


 
 


  


One reason 
One reason for for self-isolation


self-isolation


$1.25$1.25
  GST Included


Car WarsCar Wars
Shop our new and used inventory Shop our new and used inventory 


at the former UFA building in Pincher Creek!at the former UFA building in Pincher Creek!


We look forward 
to getting past these 


difficult times together 
and seeing everyone’s 


smiles again soon.
403-627-3290   403-627-4900  


1342 Veteran’s Street    Pincher Creek    


Dr. David Baker  •  Dr. Greg Steed 
Dr. Mark Leishman  •  Dr. Fraser Peterson


General Dentists


EMERGENCY TREATMENT ONLY 
AT THIS TIME


as per the Alberta Dental Association & College


March 25, 2020
Year 9, Issue 26


COVID-19
INFORMATION


www.alberta.ca/


COVID19


This prayer, written by Cameron Bellm and posted to Instagram, was shared by Muriel McPherson during a service at Pincher Creek United Church. It 
is a reminder that, even in this time of uncertainty, we have much to be thankful for.         



http://www.shootinthebreeze.ca

mailto:publisher@shootinthebreeze.ca





COVID-19 Community Partnership

Your commitment to 12 weeks of advertising makes a difference to your community!

Quarter Page = $235 x 12     Half Page = $420 x 12   (GST not included)

You can help us keep the community informed in this unprecedented time
Shootin’ the Breeze is committed to providing information to the community 

through both our print paper and online media as the COVID-19 pandemic progresses.

Social media is crowded and full of misinformation. It may be free, but it is cluttered 
and not reaching the most vulnerable — Pincher Creek’s demographic is not a young one.

Our goal is to put FREE print papers into the hands of as many people as possible for the next 12 weeks.

High-visibility advertsing
to 2,350 + during a time 

when businesses need to stay
connected to community

Partners will be acknowledged weekly:
   * In a banner ad underneath the  

page 1 masthead in print
   * In subscriber email notices with 

link to online paper
   * In weekly social media posts

   * In a banner ad below the masthead
at www.shootinthebreeze.ca

25% of your ad purchase
will be used to cover additional

printing and delivery costs 
to increase print circulation 

from 1,100 to 2,300

For the community ...

For the local economy ...

For your business ...
 2,000+ FREE COPIES of Shootin’ the Breeze will be distributed through Canada Post to all boxes in Pincher 
Creek, Twin Butte, Lundbreck and Cowley. Bulk deliveries will be dropped at seniors facilities, free copies will be 
available at regular vendors and the online version will also be free. Crowsnest Pass currently receives 350.
 This is a critical time for accurate information to reach as many people as possible and Shootin’ the Breeze has 
proven to be a trusted source for Pincher Creek and area. People also need a sense of normalcy and a means to 
stay connected to their community. It is not a time for this to be limited to subscribers or to those who can pay.

 Small businesses doing their best to operate under restrictions or from behind closed doors will benefit from 
the increased circulation and visibility during this challenging time. 

 • Solid advertising and partnership recognition benefits your business
 • Everyone in the immediate area has access to important information and stays connected
 • Small businessess have greater chance of surviving and thriving once we’re past this tumultuous time

Win-win situation — Wednesdays, April 8 to June 24

Deadline is Friday, April 3 at noon   Contact Shannon Robison, Publisher     403-904-2227     publisher@shootinthebreeze.ca

$1.25$1.25  GST Included

April 1, 2020Year 9, Issue 27

403-627-3290   403-627-4900  

1342 Veteran’s Street    Pincher Creek    

Dr. David Baker  •  Dr. Greg Steed 

Dr. Mark Leishman  •  Dr. Fraser Peterson

General Dentists

EMERGENCY TREATMENT ONLY AT THIS TIMEas per the Alberta Dental 
Association & College

Blackburn  
Blackburn  Jewellers

Jewellers    

We offer watch batteries, jewellery repair services 

and diamond ring cleaning and inspection

768 Main St.    403-627-3292    Pincher Creek

We are available 
for pickup or delivery!
To schedule an appointment, 

call 403-627-3292 
or text 403-480-4040

COVID-19INFORMATIONwww.alberta.ca/COVID19

The dawn of new life brings a joy unmatched, especially in times of crisis. Born March 11, tiny Raleigh Joy of Fernie, B.C., reminds us of what we are 

The dawn of new life brings a joy unmatched, especially in times of crisis. Born March 11, tiny Raleigh Joy of Fernie, B.C., reminds us of what we are 

fighting for as we choose to remain housebound during the COVID-19 pandemic. Please do your part, and be one who is actively participating in the 

fighting for as we choose to remain housebound during the COVID-19 pandemic. Please do your part, and be one who is actively participating in the 

physical/social distancing measures recommended by Alberta Health Services. Remember to be kind and wash your hands.

physical/social distancing measures recommended by Alberta Health Services. Remember to be kind and wash your hands.  

Photo by Brenda Shenton  
 

 
 

  

One reason 
One reason for for self-isolation

self-isolation

$1.25$1.25
  GST Included

Car WarsCar Wars
Shop our new and used inventory Shop our new and used inventory 

at the former UFA building in Pincher Creek!at the former UFA building in Pincher Creek!

We look forward 
to getting past these 

difficult times together 
and seeing everyone’s 

smiles again soon.
403-627-3290   403-627-4900  

1342 Veteran’s Street    Pincher Creek    

Dr. David Baker  •  Dr. Greg Steed 
Dr. Mark Leishman  •  Dr. Fraser Peterson

General Dentists

EMERGENCY TREATMENT ONLY 
AT THIS TIME

as per the Alberta Dental Association & College

March 25, 2020
Year 9, Issue 26

COVID-19
INFORMATION

www.alberta.ca/

COVID19

This prayer, written by Cameron Bellm and posted to Instagram, was shared by Muriel McPherson during a service at Pincher Creek United Church. It 
is a reminder that, even in this time of uncertainty, we have much to be thankful for.         

http://www.shootinthebreeze.ca
mailto:publisher@shootinthebreeze.ca


From: Brian Hammond
To: "Minister.MunicipalAffairs@gov.ab.ca"
Subject: local and regional emergency resources
Date: March 29, 2020 9:10:00 PM
Attachments: Manpower shortages_natural disasters.docx

Honorable Minister Madu:
The idea of a regular Town Hall with the Premier and key Ministers and senior
administrators is an excellent idea and am fully supportive thereof!
I am following up the Town Hall conference with a question around the
provision of local and regional emergency services in extraordinary
circumstances.  I would appreciate your advise at your convenience on the
issue attached and how to better prepare for the kind of situation described. 
Thank you
Brian

Brian C. Hammond
Reeve
MD of Pincher Creek #9
bhammond@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
**************************************
Emails and associated attachments are confidential and intended solely for
the individual or entity to whom they have been addressed.  In the event you
have received this email by mistake, please notify the sender and delete it
from your email system.  Disclosing, copying, or distributing this
information is strictly prohibited.  We do not accept any liability from
software viruses that may have been transmitted via email, or associated
attachments.

H2a

mailto:CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:Minister.MunicipalAffairs@gov.ab.ca
mailto:bhammond@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca

Providing for the adequate protection of public and property during times of natural disaster (when emergency services are already under extraordinary pressure dealing with the Covid-19 crisis)



1. Emergency Services Fire and Ambulance and Emergency Management personnel will face additional challenges in providing assistance with natural disasters such as flood or wildfire in the upcoming season 



· highly qualified personnel from Agriculture and Forestry will less likely be available

· personnel traditionally available from other parts of the province or adjoining provinces will less likely be available.

· Regional Manpower and equipment resources of Mutual Aid partners, will less likely be available 



[bookmark: _GoBack]Will there be further discussions at the provincial level on how best to deal with these potential threats to public safety and property in the near future and to reassure local municipalities that adequate provision for these eventualities can/will be made?





April 1, 2020 

Troy A. MacCulloch 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
1037 Herron Drive, PO Box 279 
Pincher Creek, AB T0K 1W0 
Phone:  403-627-3130 
cao@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca 

Dear Troy: 

This letter is to inform you and the MD of Pincher Creek council of some of the safety 
protocols and changes we have made at the Landfill with the Covid Virus restrictions. 
We have split up our crews, we have 4 staff members working Mondays – Wednesdays 
and 4 different staff members working Thursdays – Saturdays to eliminate cross 
contamination.  We are still operating with our regular hours 8:00 am – 5:00 pm.  
The office doors are locked and we are only doing Point of Sale transactions 
through a slit at the bottom of the office door window.    All staff is having to adhere 
to the self distancing rules and only using the shared facilities two at a time. 
We are disinfecting all areas in the building and machinery through out the day. 
Administration is looking into the government work share programs on financial 
help offered to small business and employees effected by loss of hours and revenue. 
We will continue to operate with these protocols until federal guidelines  
tell us it is safe to slowly go back to normal.   
Management is taking the health and safety of our staff and the general public  
very seriously and we just wanted to let you know of our conscientious efforts. 
Here’s hoping everyone stays healthily and happy. 

Sincerely, 
Management and Staff  
The Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association. 

THE CROWSNEST/PINCHER CREEK 
LANDFILL ASSOCIATION 

Box 668 
Pincher Creek, AB   T0K 1W0 

(403) 628-3849     Fax  (403) 628-2258
www.crowsnestpincherlandfill.com

H2b

mailto:cao@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
http://www.crowsnestpincherlandfill.com/


 
 
 

 

 



H2c



1

Jessica McClelland

From: Troy MacCulloch
Sent: March 30, 2020 9:34 AM
To: Jessica McClelland
Subject: FW: Announcing a shift in our granting programs

For correspondence ‐ info 

t 

Troy A. MacCulloch 
Chief Administrative Officer 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
Herron Drive, PO Box 279 
Pincher Creek, AB  T0K-1W0 
Phone:  403-627-3130 
cao@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca 

Emails and associated attachments are confidential and intended solely for the individual 
or entity to whom they have been addressed.  In the event you have received this email by 
mistake, please notify the sender and delete if from your email system.  Disclosing, 
copying, or distributing this information is strictly prohibited.  We do not accept any 
liability from software viruses that may have been transmitted via email, or associated 
attachments.   

From: Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta <communications@cflsa.ca>  
Sent: March 30, 2020 9:23 AM 
To: Troy MacCulloch <CAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca> 
Subject: Announcing a shift in our granting programs 

How we are helping our community respond to COVID-19  
 

Caring for our Community: Responding to COVID-19 

H2d



2

The Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta is committed to 
supporting its community. In this time of uncertainty, we are shifting our grants programs 
so that we can respond to the impacts the COVID-19 pandemic on Southwestern Alberta. 
 
In order to address the urgent needs arising throughout our region, the Community 
Foundation is shifting the Community Priorities, Henry S. Varley Fund for Rural Life, and 
Youth in Action granting programs for spring 2020. This shift will enable the Community 
Foundation to provide $375,000 for frontline charitable organizations dealing with those 
most affected by the pandemic in four priority areas: food, shelter, health care, and 
families with children. It will also facilitate support for recovery efforts in the months ahead. 
The Community Foundation will work with community leaders and charities throughout 
Southwestern Alberta to ensure a coordinated and responsible approach to help mitigate 
the impact of the pandemic on our community.  
 
The Community Foundation will begin accepting applications through its online platform 
(cflsa.fluidreview.com) on Monday, March 30, 2020. The deadline to apply for the first 
round of funding is Friday, April 17, 2020. Additionally, charitable partners are asked to 
complete a brief online survey to give the Community Foundation a better understanding 
of how charities are being affected. Please click here to complete the survey.  
 
Anyone can contribute to the community’s response to the pandemic through the 
Community Foundation. All donations received by the Community Foundation for the 
COVID-19 response and recovery will go right back out to support the community. 
They will not be added to any permanently endowed funds. If you are interested in 
supporting the COVID-19 grants program, please contact Executive Director Charleen 
Davidson at cdavidson@cflsa.ca or 403-328-5297. You can also donate online through 
the Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta's listing on 
CanadaHelps.org—choose “COVID-19 Response” from the funds listed. Gifts are eligible 
for a tax-deductible donation receipt.  
 
Donors with a Donor-Advised Fund at the Community Foundation can support response 
and recovery efforts by requesting to make a contribution from their fund, and are asked to 
contact Charleen to discuss arrangements. 
 
The Community Foundation’s first priority is, and has always been, the community’s well-
being. Addressing the effects of the pandemic through the Response and Recovery 
Grants Program will help to ensure the continued health and well-being of Southwestern 
Alberta. 

   
 

  

 

Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta | 1202 2nd Ave S Unit 50, 
Lethbridge, Alberta T1J 0E3 Canada  

Unsubscribe cao@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca  

Update Profile | About Constant Contact  

Sent by communications@cflsa.ca in collaboration with
 

 

Try email marketing for free today!  
 

 

 

 



From: Grove, John
To: Quentin Stevick; Roland Milligan; Brian Hammond; Terry Yagos; "cao@ranchland66.com"; "Cindy Cornish";

"Laurie Wilgosh"; "danderberg@pinchercreek.ca"; "Blair Painter"; "patrick.thomas@crowsnestpass.com"; Troy
MacCulloch; Jessica McClelland; Jessica McClelland; "Kim Uhersky"; "Bonnie Kawasaki";
"Lisa.Sygutek@crowsnestpass.com"

Cc: Schreiner, Scott; Janssen, Jack; Lee, Dave
Subject: AltaLink"s Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Area Transmission Development
Date: March 27, 2020 2:43:38 PM

Dear Municipal Stakeholder:

Today, as part of my commitment to keep you informed of our projects in your area and out of
respect for landowners and in cooperation with the AESO, we have agreed to delay any public
outreach (mail outs) until May 1.  We will evaluate the situation in late April and determine if it is
appropriate to move forward with consultation activities at that time.  AltaLink anticipates filing the
Facility Application for the Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Area Transmission Development with the
Alberta Utilities Commission later this year.

We are continuing to respond to questions we receive from Stakeholders.

Sincerely,

John Grove Municipal and Community Affairs Manager
T  (403) 387-8273   C  (403) 519-7426  E  john.grove@altalink.ca

AltaLink A Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company

2611 – 3rd Avenue SE, Calgary, AB, T2A 7W7
www.altalink.ca

This e-mail message contains confidential information. The contents of this message are the property of AltaLink Management Ltd. the
general partner of AltaLink, L.P. If you have received this e-mail in error, please return it to the sender and delete the message
immediately.

H2e

mailto:John.Grove@AltaLink.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:AdminDirDev@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:cao@ranchland66.com
mailto:vilocow@shaw.ca
mailto:laurie@pinchercreek.ca
mailto:danderberg@pinchercreek.ca
mailto:blair.painter@crowsnestpass.com
mailto:patrick.thomas@crowsnestpass.com
mailto:CAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:Communications@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:Communications@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:Kim.Uhersky@crowsnestpass.com
mailto:bonnie.kawasaki@crowsnestpass.com
mailto:Lisa.Sygutek@crowsnestpass.com
mailto:Scott.Schreiner@AltaLink.ca
mailto:Jack.Janssen@AltaLink.ca
mailto:Dave.Lee@AltaLink.ca
mailto:john.grove@altalink.ca
http://www.altalink.ca/


March 26, 2020 

Dear Council Members, 

I hope this finds you safe and well during the uncertainties that we are all experiencing with the COVID-
19 Pandemic at the forefront of our everyday lives. 

It is times like these, when we must rely on the goodness of humanity and it brings to mind; people like 
yourselves, leaders of the community, who have made solid commitments to ensure the safety and well-
being for all.  We need you more than ever now and we thank you for your unwavering support that 
enables STARS to be available for the next patient who needs us.   

It may appear that the world has come to a stand-still . . .  but life still goes on.  During such stressful 
times, critical illnesses like heart attack or stroke occur every day, motor vehicle collisions, and those 
who may have lost their way (search & rescue) are still happening.  STARS remains mission-ready to 
answer these calls for help. Please remember, this is not the first time that we have faced this type of 
situation i.e. HIV, SARS, H1N1 and now COVID-19.  Be assured, our air medical crews routinely care for 
patients who may be afflicted with a range of communicable diseases.  STARS have protocols and 
training in place to ensure that we can safely manage these illnesses, including COVID-19.   

We commend the dedicated men and women within emergency protective services who continue to put 
our lives, ahead of their own and STARS is honored to work alongside them every day.  Even behind the 
scenes, medical supply companies contacted us in advance, to ensure that safety and medical supplies 
would be readily available.  Just another way that emphasizes how it takes a community to save a life.  

Most councils have closed offices and cancelled their meetings until further notice. We have done the 
same and apart from medical crews at the bases, all support staff are working from home.  I look 
forward to future opportunities when we can re-connect, and I can visit your councils again.  In the 
meantime, I will continue to keep you updated through e-mail.  I am also available directly on cell at 
(780) 512-6205 if you have any questions.

Thank you for being there for STARS.  Together, we will persevere and realize a better tomorrow. 

Glenda Farnden 
Senior Municipal Relations Liaison 
STARS Foundation 

H2f



From: Troy MacCulloch
To: Brian Hammond; Rick Lemire; Quentin Stevick; Bev Everts; Terry Yagos
Cc: Jessica McClelland; Roland Milligan
Subject: Artist project
Date: March 26, 2020 2:07:02 PM

Hi all,

Just a quick update from this committee.  Due to current circumstances and Bob being quite busy at
the moment, they do not feel like they can hit their original date with a report to Council.  The third
person of the committee, has left our community, so Linde and Bob and are dividing her artists to
review.  The response from our community has been fantastic and it sounds like you are all going to
have some very difficult decisions to make in determining which pieces are eventually purchased.

Stay well,

troy

Troy A. MacCulloch
Chief Administrative Officer
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
1037 Herron Drive, PO Box 279
Pincher Creek, AB  T0K-1W0
Phone:  403-627-3130
cao@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca

Emails and associated attachments are confidential and intended solely for
the individual or entity to whom they have been addressed.  In the event you
have received this email by mistake, please notify the sender and delete if
from your email system.  Disclosing, copying, or distributing this
information is strictly prohibited.  We do not accept any liability from
software viruses that may have been transmitted via email, or associated
attachments.  

H2g

mailto:CAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv3@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:Communications@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:AdminDirDev@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca


Food Bank Summary for MD Council – April 9/20 

Current situation 

The Food Bank is open and operating out of the Vertical Church facility.  The Town has set up an 
account with a food wholesaler and has now received two orders. We have only received ½ of what 
we requested because of supply chain issues.  Food Banks Alberta is now prepared to begin shipping 
again.  

Food Bank financial contributions are being received by the Town of Pincher Creek (until a new 
account is established). 

A new dedicated phone was activated and the number was publicized on social media, and the Town 
and MD websites. A laptop is on order.  Training of volunteers is on-going. 

Efforts are underway to recruit volunteers as Board Members for a new Food Bank organization 

April 8, 2020  Town staff on site (administrative oversite) 

Volunteers on site (6 - assembling hampers) 

Hamper Distribution:     25 hampers 

Food Inventory: enough for 30 more 

Food Order:  April 9 

The Food Bank requires concerted administrative management and oversite.  There are a lot of 
“moving parts” that require coordination.  

As a community, we are dealing with two levels of food security:  

- one is the traditional food bank system where one family, with constrained financial resources,
gets one hamper per month (this is the one we are dealing with, projecting that hamper
frequency may have to increase)

- The second is the new food-order-and-delivery system initiated by the Abundant Springs
Church where clients are able to buy groceries but are isolated or unable to use normal food
access systems. This is not the system under consideration by the PC Food Bank.

Going forward:  3 options are open to the Town/MD 

- Vertical Church -- currently only able to provide venue. Everything else they need
assistance with. Once the COVID problem is resolved, the Church will require its sanctuary
back meaning that all food must be moved and managed either from the church’s basement or
a new facility.  Chris and Gemma Ney have agreed to contract with the Town for two weeks to
train new administration with client registration, food order systems, and food distribution

H2h



systems.  That gives municipal government a chance to better understand all the moving parts 
and to assemble a solid group of trained staff and volunteers. 
 
- Newly formed organization –  

- composed of various groups that have expressed interest (Board of Directors).  
- located either in another facility once the crisis is over (ie. old RCMP building or other facility) 

or continue to operate out of the basement of the Vertical Church (not recommended). 
 
- FCSS -- Would require administrative assistance and coordination to facilitate transition to a 
new organization. 
 
Note: Food bank oversite and administrative activity by FCSS is not eligible within the normal 
FCSS Funding Eligibility Guidelines.  FCSS has remained involved because of a social 
responsibility that reaches beyond those guidelines (which explains our involvement in matters 
such as Food Bank and Emergency Reception Centre operations).  Through the Province’s 
allocation of a Covid Emergency Fund which overrides the normal eligibility guidelines, FCSS 
is currently providing front-line administrative oversite for the Food Bank amd Covid-related 
grant applications from groups and organizations in our District.  
  

 

This is an opportunity for the greater community to get fully behind the Food Bank.  The Food 
Bank must function in times beyond the Covid crisis.  This is our chance to approach Food 
Bank operations realistically, to build what should be built, in a location that is conducive to 
food bank operation.  We have been fortunate to have had continued food bank presence in 
this community. This is an opportunity to make that presence even more effective.  Let’s put 
the Food Bank on new footings.   



Administration Guidance Re uest 

TITLE: CHANGES TO SCHEDULED EVENTS 

PREPARED BY: JESSICA MCCLELLAND 

DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Date 

DATE: April 9, 2020 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

APPROVALS: 

Department Director Date 

REQUEST: 

Date 

To keep with proper social distancing, and recommendations from the Province on numbers of 
people in groups, that Council cancel previously arranged Coffee with Council dates. 

BACKGROUND: 

• Volunteer Appreciation Lunch (April 22) *postponed 

• Pincher Creek Trade Show (May 1 & 2) *cancelled 

• Coffee with Council Lundbreck (May 7) 

• Beaver Mines Clean up (May 9) 

• Coffee with Council Surnmerview (June 11) 

I FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None. 

Presented to: Council Meeting 
Date of Meeting: April 14, 2020 

Page 1 of 1 

Ja


	A 2020-04-14 Council Agenda
	C1 2020-03-24 Council Committee Meeting Minutes
	C2 2020-03-24 Council Meeting MinutesDraftFinal
	G1a Operations Report
	G1a2 Work Order  for Council Revised APRIL 14 2020 meeting - UPDATED
	G2a AES March 2020
	G2b MD REPORT MARCH 2020
	G3a 2020 Tax Rate Bylaw
	G3b Changes to 2020 Property Tax Penalties
	G3c Changes to 2020 Utilty Penalties
	G4a CAO Report
	H1a Request from EMS
	H1b Request for Partnership
	H1b2 COVID 19 12 Weeks
	H2a local and regional emergency resources
	H2a 2
	H2b Landfill Letters to the CAO  Covid
	H2c Letters to the Minister confirming ICF has been completed and passed by Motion
	H2d Announcing a shift in our granting programs
	H2d AltaLink's Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Area Transmission Development
	H2f Thank you to Council during COVID-19 March 26, 2020
	H2g Artist project
	H2h Food Bank Summary for MD Council
	Ja Changes to Events



